
 

                                           
 

                               Chester County Council Meeting June 21st, 2021                                                         1 
 

                     CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
                R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                           1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                       Monday, June 21, 2021 at 6:00 PM 
             Interim Supervisor Dr. Wylie Frederick Presiding 
  
                                                                  Agenda  
 
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation  

3. Approval of Minutes  
May 27th, 2021 Budget Workshop minutes. 
June 3rd, 2021 Budget Workshop and Special Called minutes. 
June 7th, 2021 Council minutes. 
June 14th, 2021 Special Called minutes. 
 

4. Citizen Comments 

5. Public Hearing  
 a. 3rd  Reading of Ordinance 2021-4 Chester County Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Budget to Establish Operating   
And Capital Budgets For The Operation Of The County Government Of Chester County, South Carolina For 
The Fiscal Year Commencing  July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Levy Of Taxes For Chester County For The 
Fiscal Year Commencing July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Expenditure Of Tax Revenues And Other County 
Funds; To Provide For Other County Purposes; To Authorize The County To Borrow Money In Anticipation 
Of Taxes And To Provide For The Repayment Of Sums Borrowed By The County Governing Body; To 
Provide For The Payment Of Tort Claims And Worker's Compensation Claims Against Chester County; To 
Provide For Certain Fiscal And Other Matters Relating To County Government. 

 
6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations 

a. 3rd  Reading of Ordinance 2021-4 Chester County Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Budget to Establish Operating 
And Capital Budgets For The Operation Of The County Government Of Chester County, South Carolina For 
The Fiscal Year Commencing  July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Levy Of Taxes For Chester County For The 
Fiscal Year Commencing July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Expenditure Of Tax Revenues And Other County 
Funds; To Provide For Other County Purposes; To Authorize The County To Borrow Money In Anticipation 
Of Taxes And To Provide For The Repayment Of Sums Borrowed By The County Governing Body; To 
Provide For The Payment Of Tort Claims And Worker's Compensation Claims Against Chester County; To 
Provide For Certain Fiscal And Other Matters Relating To County Government. 
 

             b. 1st Reading of 2021-7 Ordinance to Repeal section 46-94 of the Chester County Code-transporting loose  
             material.  

 
             c. 2nd Reading of 2021-8 Ordinance to Adopt a Fund Balance Policy.  
 
             d.  Resolution 2021-12 A Resolution to authorize the County of Chester, by Chester County Council to sell   
             certain vehicles of the County and the Sheriff’s Office Identified herein upon such terms and conditions as  
             described.   
 



 

                                           
 

                               Chester County Council Meeting June 21st, 2021                                                         2 
 

 
   7.      Old Business   
 a. Update of the 2021 Reassessment- Assessor Rick Anderson. 
 
 b. Update on the Burnt House Meeting Cemetery. -Councilman Jordan. 
 

c. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-14: Judy Funderburk request Tax Map # 158-01-08-007-000 located at 1474 Catawba 
River Road, Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from R1 (Rural One) to RG-2 (General Residential). Planning Commission 

voted 6-0 to deny.  

 

             d. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-15:  JDSI, LLC by Judson Stringfellow request Tax Map # 124-00-00-024-000  
             located off Hwy 9, Richburg, SC be rezoned from RS-1 (Single Family) to PD (Planned Development). Planning  

             Commission voted 4-2 to approve.  

 

             e. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-16:  JDSI, LLC by Judson Stringfellow request Tax Map # 124-00-00-027-000  
             located off Hwy 9, Richburg, SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to PD (Planned Development). Planning  

             Commission voted 4-2 to approve.  

 
  8.       New Business 
 a. 1st Reading of CCMA21-17: - David Woods request Tax Map # 079-01-14-017-000 located at 730 
             Sugarplum Road, Chester be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi Family) to RG-2 (General Residential). 
             Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve.  
 
 b. 1st Reading of CCMA21-18: - Eugene Raffaldt request Tax Map # 161-01-00-011-000 located at 5584  
             Brooklyn Road, Great Falls be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi Family) to RG-2 (General Residential). 
 Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 
 c. 1st Reading of CCMA21-19: - Carolina Gypsum, LLC request Tax Map # 080-02-02-006-000 located at 531  
             Wilson Street, Chester be rezoned from GC (General Commercial) to ID-2 (Limited Industrial). 
 Planning Commission vote 7-0 to approve.   
 
 d. Council to authorize EMS to apply for a no match grant for up to $75,000 to enhance mobile vaccinations for  
             Covid. EMS Director Britt Lineberger. 
 

e. Discuss procedures for renting facilities in the Town of Great Falls. County Council. 
 
f. Discuss holding monthly scheduled Council workshops. Councilman Wilson.  

9.       Boards and Commissions -None 

10.     Executive Session 
a. To receive legal advice regarding the Chester Facilities Corporation. Attorney Winters.  

b. To receive legal advice regarding the Fund Balance Ordinance. Attorney Winters. 

c. To receive legal advice regarding the Gateway. Attorney Winters.  

d. To receive legal advice regarding Project Magma. Attorney Winters 

11.     Council Actions Following Executive Session 
a. Action taken on legal advice regarding the Chester Facilities Corporation. 

b. Action taken on legal advice regarding the Fund Balance Ordinance. 
c. Action taken on legal advice regarding the Gateway.  



 

                                           
 

                               Chester County Council Meeting June 21st, 2021                                                         3 
 

d. Action taken on legal advice regarding Project Magma. 

12.    Council Comments 

13.    Adjourn 

 

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester County 
Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
 
Any citizen who wishes to make a public comment at the County Council meetings can do so in the following ways:  
Guidelines for Addressing Council. 

     * * * P U B L I C  N O T I C E * * *    

Chester County Council has relaxed some of the COVID measures put into place for personal appearances at County Council meetings but 
continues to encourage social distancing while in County facilities. 
 
 

  Citizens Comments: 

• Please sign the sign-in sheet upon arrival, name, address and telephone number. 
• Each citizen will be limited to three minutes. 
• Large groups (more than 5) speaking on the same position on an issue must appoint one representative to speak 

on behalf of the group. 
 
Public Hearings: 

• Please sign the sign-in sheet upon arrival, name, address and telephone number. 
• Each speaker will be limited to a three-minute presentation. 
• Large groups (more than 5) speaking on the same position on an issue must appoint one representative to speak 

on behalf of the group. 
When introduced: 

• Approach the podium, state your name and address. 
• Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed. 
• Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council. 
• Do not approach the Council table unless directed. 

 

Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you: 

• Use profanity. 
• Stray from the subject. 
• Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council.    
• Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council. 

 

 

 



Chester County Budget Workshop May 27th, 2021                                                         1 
 

 

CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP MINUTES   

          R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Building 
                        1476 J A Cochran Bypass- Council Chambers 
 

                Thursday, May 27th, 2021 at 9:00 AM  
 

                                   Budget Workshop Minutes  

Present: Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Councilwoman Guy, Councilman Brad Jordan, Vice Chairman 
Joe Branham, Councilman Pete Wilson, Councilman Mike Vaughn, Attorney Joanie Winters, Clerk to Council 
Karen Lee, Treasurer Tommy Darby and Finance Manager Wesley Carter.  Absent: Councilman William Killian  

 

1.    Call to Order-Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order.  

2.    Approval of Minutes 

 a. May 13th, 2021 Budget Workshop Minutes. 
 Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to  
            approve.  
 
 b. May 20th, 2021 Budget Workshop Minutes. 
 Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to  
              approve.  

3.    Budget Discussion- General Funds 

 Treasurer Tommy Darby provided an overview of general funds: 

        Fire Coordinator  

• Update fire code books in the Fire Coordinator’s office. 

Rural Fire 

• Update fire code books for fire service, fire marshals and fire departments. 
• Added a line item for additional fuel. 
• Incentive compensation to fire fighters. 

County Garage 

•     Added $2200 for maintenance software.  
•     Added more money for additional fuel. 

      Building Maintenance 

• Discussed hiring a part time recreational seasonal employee. 
• Discussed hiring two additional employees to do lawn care. 
• Discussed purchasing new lawn mowers. 

                   Animal Control 

• Discussed adding a director position. 
• Added money to the medical services account. 

 



Chester County Budget Workshop May 27th, 2021                                                         2 
 

                   Road Department 

• Unfroze a truck driver position. 

       County Recreation 

• Added funds for communication and advertising. 

                   Sheriff’s Office 

• Unfreeze four positions in the detention center, terminate three of the positions, 
                                        and reallocate the money toward salaries.  

• Money for security for the County Government Complex. 
• Update computer system data. 
• Rental fees for the substation in Richburg.  
•    Increase in overtime. 

 
       Detention Center 
  

• Increase in salaries from unfreezing positions to reallocate a portion to their salary. 
• Discussed maintenance and service contracts. 
• Discussed grant match funds.  

    
      
4.    Budget Discussion - Other Funds 

          Treasurer Tommy Darby provided an overview of other funds: 

     Richburg Fire 

• Discussed having to run more calls. 

5.    Budget Discussion - Capital Funds 

 Treasurer Tommy Darby provided an overview of capital funds: 

• Impact fees 

• Fund balance 

6.    Adjourn-Councilman Jordan motioned to adjourn, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 5-0 to  
       adjourn.  
 

I 
I 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. 
Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted on the bulletin 
board at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting 
 



 

     CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL  

   BUDGET WORKSHOP & SPECIAL CALLED MEETING  

                                               R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Building 
                                                     1476 J A Cochran Bypass- Council Chambers 
 

                  Thursday, June 3rd, 2021, at 3:30 PM 
 

          Minutes 

Present: Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Councilwoman Guy, Councilman Brad Jordan, Vice Chairman Joe 
Branham, Councilman Pete Wilson, Councilman Mike Vaughn, Attorney Joanie Winters, Clerk to Council Karen Lee, 
Treasurer Tommy Darby and Finance Manager Wesley Carter.  Absent: Councilman William Killian  

 
1.    Call to Order-Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order. 

2.    Budget Discussion- General Fund 
 Sheriff Dorsey spoke gave an introduction for upcoming grants for the Sheriff’s office.  

3.    Budget Discussion - Other Fund 
              Treasurer Tommy Darby went over the recommended County services, fire districts, ATAX, C-funds, 
              Library and York Tech. 
 
4.    Budget Discussion - Capital Fund 
              Treasurer Tommy Darby went over the capital fund.  
 
5.    Executive Session-Vice Chairman Branham motioned to go to executive session, second by Councilman Jordan. 
       Vote 5-0 to approve.  
       a. Receive legal advice regarding the State of Emergency Update. Attorney Winters.  

  b. Receive legal advice regarding Southeastern. Attorney Winters. 

6.   Council Action Following Executive Session-Councilman Vaughn motioned to go back to regular session, 
      second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to adjourn.  
 
       a. Action taken on legal advice of the State of Emergency Update. Taken as information only.  

  b. Action taken on legal advice regarding Southeastern. Taken as information only.   

7.    Adjourn-Councilman Wilson motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to adjourn.  

 

I 
I 
I 
I Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 

Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting 



 

Chester County Council Meeting June 7th,2021                                                                       1 
 

     CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MINUTES  
               R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                         1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                                                     Monday, June 7th, 2021 at 6:00 PM 
 
   Present:  Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan,  
   Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman Pete Wilson, Clerk to Council Karen Lee  
   and County Attorney Joanie Winters.  Councilwoman Guy was absent with prior notification.  
   Rules of Procedure Section 2-59 and 60 were suspended.  
 
 

1. Call to Order- Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation- Pledge was recited in unison, Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick gave the 
invocation. 
  

3. Approval of Minutes  
   a. May 17th, 2021 Minutes. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn. 
   Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

4. Citizen Comments 

Judson Stringfellow, 3515 Dogwood Drive, Charlotte stated the site plans for the rezoning request on the agenda 
tonight were modified to meet the Planning Commission’s recommendations. The plans fit within the county’s 
comprehensive plan and in line with the Gateway District Master Plan. 

David Hensley, 1971 S. Anderson Road, Rock Hill, SC stated if approved he estimated ten years for a full build of 
the project and with his discussions with Chester Wastewater Recovery, they had indicated there would be sufficient 
sewer capacity to service the development. 

Judy Funderburk, 5899 Cindy Lane, Fort Lawn stated she has the opportunity to buy a piece of land to put here 
manufactured home there. She asked Council to approve her request to rezone the property to RG-2 zoning.  

John Agee, 3302 Lancaster Hwy, Richburg stated he was a member of the Gateway Steering Committee and wanted 
Council to know the rezoning request for CCMA21-15 and 16 were the closest plans to the Gateway Master plan 
and they were in favor of their request.   

 
5. Public Hearing- Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick opened the public hearing, no one signed up to speak.  

a. 3rd Reading of 2021-3 An Ordinance Authorizing, Pursuant To Title 12, Chapter 44 Of The Code Of Laws 

Of South Carolina 1976, As Amended, The Execution And Delivery Of A Fee-In-Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes 

Agreement By And Between Chester County, South Carolina, And E. & J. Gallo Winery, Formerly 

Identified As Project Magma, Acting For Itself, One Or More Current Or Future Affiliates And Other 

Project Companies (Collectively, “Company”); and an Incentive Agreement Between the County and the 

Company; Providing For A Special Source Revenue Credit; Modifying A Joint County Industrial And 

Business Park Of Chester And York Counties So As To Enlarge The Park; Authorizing The Execution And 

Delivery Of One Or More Grant Agreements; And Other Related Matters. Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick 

closed the public hearing, 



 

Chester County Council Meeting June 7th,2021                                                                       2 
 

6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations 

a. 3rd Reading of 2021-3 An Ordinance Authorizing, Pursuant To Title 12, Chapter 44 Of The Code 
Of Laws Of South Carolina 1976, As Amended, The Execution And Delivery Of A Fee-In-Lieu Of 
Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement By And Between Chester County, South Carolina, And E. & J. Gallo 
Winery, Formerly Identified As Project Magma, Acting For Itself, One Or More Current Or Future 
Affiliates And Other Project Companies (Collectively, “Company”); and an Incentive Agreement 
Between the County and the Company; Providing For A Special Source Revenue Credit; Modifying 
A Joint County Industrial And Business Park Of Chester And York Counties So As To Enlarge The 
Park; Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of One Or More Grant Agreements; And Other 
Related Matters. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 
to approve.  

b. 2nd Reading of 2021-4 Chester County Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Budget to Establish Operating And 
Capital Budgets For The Operation Of The County Government Of Chester County, South Carolina 
For The Fiscal Year Commencing  July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Levy Of Taxes For Chester 
County For The Fiscal Year Commencing July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Expenditure Of Tax 
Revenues And Other County Funds; To Provide For Other County Purposes; To Authorize The 
County To Borrow Money In Anticipation Of Taxes And To Provide For The Repayment Of Sums 
Borrowed By The County Governing Body; To Provide For The Payment Of Tort Claims And 
Worker's Compensation Claims Against Chester County; To Provide For Certain Fiscal And Other 
Matters Relating To County Government. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by 
Councilman Killian. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
     

      c. 1st Reading of 2021-8 in title only -Fund Balance Ordinance.  
Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

      d. Resolution 2021-11 Identifying the Capital Projects as Part of a Program of General Obligation  
     Borrowing; And Other Related Matters. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by   
      Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

7. Old Business  

      a. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-12: Michael D. Cannon of MC Real Estate, LLC request Tax Map # 125-00-00- 
     010-000 located on Colonels Point Parkway be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General  
     Industrial). Planning Commission vote 6-0 to approve with a reverter clause if the business closes. 

     Mr. Cannon stated he would not build a spec building but would build a 10,000 sq. ft. footprint under one roof, 
     when he retires and sells his business, he would revert the property back to the ID2 zoning.  He would build out the  
     other 5000 square feet so he would have two buildings to rent in his retirement.  Councilman Wilson motioned to  
     approve with a reverter clause that if the businesses close or stops operating as described in the entire building it  
     will revert back to the ID2 zoning, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

 
       b. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-13: Michael R. Mills, agent for JAH Properties LLC request Tax Map # 087-00-00-  
      001- 000 (portion of) located along Darby Road Chester SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to RS-1 (Single   
      Family) Planning Commission voted 6-0 to approve. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by  
      Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

 

 c. Update regarding the recreation agreement between Chester County and Great Falls. Councilman Vaughn. 

 Attorney Winters suggested an interim lease for the next twelve months for Council to sort everything out.  
 Councilman Vaughn motioned the County to continue providing services and insurance for one year, second by   
 Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to approve. Attorney Winters asked if she could recommend to Council  
 to determine who is responsible for renting the fields, who collects the money, who should not collect the money  
 where the money goes. She stated some type of procedures should be put into place whether it is the County or the 



 

Chester County Council Meeting June 7th,2021                                                                       3 
 

 Town of Great Falls so there is no confusion.  
 

8. New Business 
      a. Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Department to apply for (COSSAP) Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant   
      and Substance Abuse Site Based Program grant for $600,000 dollars with no match.  -Sheriff Dorsey. 
      Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

 
 b. Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Department to apply for COPS Office Hiring program grant for $480,000 
dollars with a 25% match. Sheriff Dorsey. Chief Deputy Joe Tate stated the $480,000 should have been multiplied 
by three which added up to $1,440,000 dollars with a 25% match from the County. Councilman Vaughn motioned 
to approve $1,440,000 with a 25% match, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 5-0 to approve. 
 
 c. Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Department to apply for Smart Policing Initiative grant for $500,000 
with no match. Sheriff Dorsey. Councilman Jordan motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote  
5-0 to approve.  

 
 d. 1st Reading of CCMA21-14: Judy Funderburk request Tax Map # 158-01-08-007-000 located at 1474   
Catawba River Road, Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from R1 (Rural One) to RG-2 (General Residential).  
Planning Commission voted 6-0 to Deny. Councilman Vaughn motioned to decline the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission, second by Councilman Wilson. Councilman Vaughn stated the change would not be 
detrimental to the community since other manufactured homes already existed in the area. The property meets the 
RG2 requirements. Councilman Wilson suggested for the third reading to add a reverter clause so if she is not able 
to own and move the manufactured home to the property the zoning would revert back to R1 zoning. Councilman 
Wilson withdrew his second, Councilman Vaughn withdrew his motion. Councilman Vaughn motioned to decline 
the recommendation of the Planning Commission and add a reverter clause should the property change hands, 
second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

 
       e. 1st Reading of CCMA21-15:  JDSI, LLC by Judson Stringfellow request Tax Map # 124-00-00-024-000  
       located off Hwy 9, Richburg, SC be rezoned from RS-1 (Single Family) to PD (Planned Development)  
       Planning Commission voted 4-2 to approve. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman  
       Branham.  Councilman Jordan stated he was concerned not only with the sewer issue but water issues as well not  
       meeting capacity.  He had read concerns from a citizen stating that a Richburg public authority told them  
       at the Planning Commission meeting this was a done deal before it was presented to the Commission. He did not  
       remember the Gateway Steering Committee proposing or backing a development. His concern for this 
       development was the same he has had for the others. Councilman Killian stated the County needs houses for all  
       the growth that is coming, if Council keeps turning them down, they will stop coming. Vote 4-1 to approve. 
 

       f. 1st Reading of CCMA21-16:  JDSI, LLC by Judson Stringfellow request Tax Map # 124-00-00-027-000  
       located off Hwy 9, Richburg, SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to PD (Planned Development) Planning  

       Commission voted 4-2 to approve. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham.  
       Vote 4-1 to approve. Councilman Jordan opposed.  
 

       g. Discuss the naming of an entrance at Chester Technology Park. -County Council. 
       Councilman Killian motioned to name the entrance Technology Drive, second by Councilman Wilson. 
       Vote 5-0 to approve.  

 
9.  Boards and Commissions-None   

10.  Executive Session-Councilman Vaughn motioned to go to executive session, second by Councilman Killian.  
 Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 



 

Chester County Council Meeting June 7th,2021                                                                       4 
 

  a. Receive legal advice regarding IBHS. Attorney Winters. 
  b. Receive legal advice regarding update on Project Magma. Attorney Winters. 
  c. Receive legal advice on Economic Development Grant. Attorney Winters.  

 

11.  Council Actions Following Executive Session-Councilman Vaughn motioned to go back to regular session, 
 second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

  a. Action taken on legal advice regarding IBHS. Information only. 
  b. Action taken on legal advice regarding update on Project Magma. Information only. 
  c. Action taken on legal advice regarding Economic Development Grant.  
  Councilman Wilson motioned to authorize Economic Developer Long to apply for a grant for road and water  
  improvements at the Chester Research and Development Park, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 5-0 to  
  approve.  

 
12. Council Comments 

Councilman Wilson stated the annual I to I yard sale would be starting Friday June 11th and Saturday June 12th. 
 

13. Adjourn 
Councilman Jordan motioned to adjourn, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to adjourn. 
 
Time: 8:20 PM 
 
 

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 



 

      CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING  
                                   R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Building 
                                        1476 J A Cochran Bypass- Council Chambers 

 
                            Monday June 14th, 2021 at 10:00AM 
 

     

           Minutes  

Present: Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Pete Wilson, Attorney Joanie 
Winters, Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilman William Killian and Karen Lee, Clerk to Council.  Councilwoman Guy 
came into the meeting at 10:05am. Councilman Jordan was absent with prior notification.  

 

1.    Call to Order-Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order at 10:02 am.  

2.    Executive Session-Vice Chairman Branham motioned to go to executive session, second by Councilman  
       Killian. Vote 4-0 to approve.  
 
       a. Receive legal advice regarding Project Magma.  

3.   Council Action Following Executive Session-Councilwoman Guy motioned to go back to regular session, 
      second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

      a. Action taken regarding legal advice on Project Magma. Taken as information only.  

4.    Adjourn-Councilman Vaughn motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 5-0 to adjourn. 

 

I 
I 
I 
I 
 
 
 
I.   Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. 

Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at 
the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting 



























EXPENDITURES
SECTION 1 - GENERAL FUND - PAGE 1
105 County Supervisor Net Change

Add Assistant Administrator (Includes FICA/Retirement) 33,260.00

Reclass Receptionist 4,555.00

Increase 37,815.00

170 Building Maintenance

Add (2) Custodians 56,665.00

Reduce Maintenance Contracts - Cleaning (56,665.00)

Increase 0.00

250 Attorney Services

Change to Salary (Includes FICA/Retirement) 86,586.00

Eliminate Professional Service (86,500.00)

Increase 86.00

190 Contingent Fund - Reserve for Encumbrances

Detention Center - Chiller/Boiler 243,845.00 Carryforward Purchase Order approved in FY2021 budget that is not completed.

243,845.00

SECTION 1 - MILLAGE FUNDS - PAGE 2
Chester Fire District

Insurance Adjustment - Worker's Comp 19,156.00 Requested increase due to increased estimate of Worker's Comp insurance.

Increase 19,156.00

REVENUE
SECTION 2- GENERAL FUND - PAGE 3
Property Tax

Real and Personal 6,746.00 Difference from changes made.  

Licenses, Fees, Fines, and Permits

Building Permits 485,000.00 Added Project Magma Permit Fee

Other Income

Appropriation of Fund Balance (210,000.00) Added Expenditure Proposed Changes and Reduced by Permit Fee increase

SECTION 2 - MILLAGE FUNDS - PAGE 3
Property Taxes

Chester Fire District 19,156.00 Requested increase due to increased estimate of Worker's Comp insurance.

Proposed Changes for 3rd Reading

FY2022 Budget Ordinance

Add two Custodians to perform cleaning services current performed under a 

professional service contract.  No change to the budget.

Eliminate professional service line item (billed services) and pay County Attorney 

under salary line item.  Increase salary to $85,000.

Dr. Frederick is restructuring his office personel to increase efficiency and productivity.  

The restructuring would add a position and reclassify another. The total number of 

positions will not change.



 

 

 
SECTION 27:  All taxes, fees, charges and assessments not otherwise allocated by law shall be 
deposited in the Chester County general fund with other general fund revenues.  All such taxes, fees, 
charges and assessments shall be appropriated and allocated by the Chester County Council in the 
manner as other general revenues. 
 
 
BUILDING FEE ($) 
  
911 Address Stakes 20.00 
Manufactured Homes (Minimum Fee) 205.00 
Residential Plan Review  ½ cost of permit 
Commercial/Industrial Plan Review  ½ cost of permit 
Residential Re-inspection Fee $50.00 
Commercial Re-Inspection Fee $100.00 
  
ZONING  
Commercial Zoning Compliance Letters 35.00 
Residential Zoning Compliance 20.00 
Manufactured Zoning Compliance  20.00 
Home Occupation Letter  35.00 
Commercial/Industrial Zoning Site Plan Review   300.00 
Zoning Site Plan Re-Review                          75.00 
Site Review  35.00 
Certificate of Occupancy Zoning Site Review  35.00 
Rezoning                               Per Parcel: Residential/Non-Residential                                                                              
                                              PUD/Planned Development  

 150.00/300.00 
1000.00 

Special Exception: Residential/ Non-Residential   150.00/300.00 
Variance: Residential/Non-Residential  150.00/300.00 
New Communication Towers 1000.00 
Zoning Ordinance Book  35.00 
Comprehensive Plan Book  35.00 
Zoning Maps  35.00 
Flood Plain Review                                                                                Residential                                25.00 

 Commercial  50.00 
                                                                                                            Industrial  100.00 

LAND DEVELOPMENT   
Variance, Flag Lot, Easement, Street Access and Private Rural Community Drive  150.00 
Plat Approval (Five Sealed Copies) 20.00 
Each additional Plat Approval (per sealed copy) 5.00 
Sketch Plan Review  100.00 
Preliminary Plat Approval (per lot)                         20.00 
Final Plat Approval (per lot) 10.00 
Land Development Book 35.00 
Grading                                                                       3 acres or less 
                                                                                    4 to 11 acres 
                                                                                    12 to 51 acres 
                                                                                    52 to 99 acres  
                                                                                    Over 100 acres  

90.00 
120.00 
205.00 
340.00 
475.00 

Culvert                                                             Single  350.00 
                                                                         Multi-Family  650.00 
                                                                         Commercial/Industrial   650.00 
  
Stop Sign   75.00 
Speed Limit Sign  75.00 
End of County Maintenance Sign  75.00 



 

 

PARKS AND RECREATION FEE ($) 
County Owned / Leased Recreational Facilities 100.00 
  
CHESTER WAR MEMORIAL BUILDING $300 Refundable Deposit 1000.00 
  
GREAT FALLS WAR MEMORIAL BUILDING $200 Refundable Deposit 600.00 
  
THE GATEWAY CONFERENCE CENTER  
Pricing for Sunday – Thursday  
Grand Ballroom (A, B & C), 9,390 sq. ft. 4,800.00 
Petite Ballroom (A & B), 6,031 sq. ft. 2,400.00 
Ballroom A, 3,462 sq. ft. 1,366.00 
Ballroom B, 2,569 sq. ft. 1,126.00 
Ballroom C, 3,969 sq. ft. 2,400.00 
Grand Salon, 2,852 sq. ft. 1,200.00 
Salon A, 1,406 sq. ft., ($204/4 hours-$255/5 hours) 600.00 
Salon B, 1,446 sq. ft., ($228/4 hours-$285/5 hours) 750.00 
Grand Meeting Room, 3,064 sq. ft. 1,350.00 
Petite Meeting Room (A & B), 2,128 sq. ft. 1,260.00 
Meeting Room A, 1,073 sq. ft., ($228/4 hours-$285/5 hours) 660.00 
Meeting Room B, 1,055 sq. ft., ($204/4 hours-$255/5 hours) 600.00 
Meeting Room C, 936 sq. ft. 450.00 
L&C Conference Room, 396 sq. ft. 210.00 
*** In addition to the rental charge, there will be a $500 security deposit per 
room  

 

  
Pricing for Friday & Saturday  
Grand Ballroom (A, B & C), 9,390 sq. ft. 6,000.00 
Petite Ballroom (A & B), 6,031 sq. ft. 3,000.00 
Ballroom A, 3,462 sq. ft. 1,782.00 
Ballroom B, 2,569 sq. ft. 1,407.00 
Ballroom C, 3,969 sq. ft. 3,000.00 
Grand Salon, 2,852 sq. ft. 1,500.00 
Salon A, 1,406 sq. ft., ($255/4 hours-$319/5 hours) 750.00 
Salon B, 1,446 sq. ft., ($285/4 hours-$356/5 hours) 938.00 
Grand Meeting Room, 3,064 sq. ft. 1,688.00 
Petite Meeting Room (A & B), 2,128 sq. ft. 1,575.00 
Meeting Room A, 1,073 sq. ft., ($285/4 hours-$356/5 hours) 825.00 
Meeting Room B, 1,055 sq. ft., ($255/4 hours-$319/5 hours) 750.00 
Meeting Room C, 936 sq. ft. 563.00 
L&C Conference Room, 396 sq. ft. 263.00 
***In addition to the rental charge, there will be a $500 security deposit per 
room. 

 

  
THE GATEWAY CONFERENCE CENTER  
Projectors (per projector) 100.00 
      Grand Ballroom  300.00 
      Grand Salon  200.00 
      Grand Meeting  300.00 
  
Podium with microphone 25.00 
Podium with computer 65.00 
Handheld or lapel microphone 25.00 
XLR input 25.00 
A/V rack 125.00 
Weekend A/V Tech (unscheduled) (rate per hour) 150.00 
A/V Tech (scheduled) (rate per hour) 100.00 



 

 

THE GATEWAY CONFERENCE CENTER (continued)  
Stadium speakers and spotlights- Grand Ballroom 350.00 
Stadium speakers and spotlights- Ballroom C 150.00 
Sweetheart / Cake table (per table) 7.50 
Cocktail Table (per table) 10.00 
Mouthwash dispensers (per dispenser) 25.00 
Red Wine Corking Fee 200.00 
Dressing Lounges (use of 2nd set or use without appropriate room rental- only if 
available) 

200.00 

  
  
THE TAX ASSESOR’S OFFICE  
Price per copy of property tax record 0.25 
Price per copy of homeowner or business owner property tax record 0.00 
Price for digital parcels for entire Chester County 5,500.00 
  
  
TREASURER’S OFFICE  
Copy Card Access 1.00 
Price per copy 0.25 
Credit Card Convenience Fee 2% of Total 
Vehicle Decal Fee 1.00 
Duplicate Receipt 1.00 
  
  
LANDFILL  
Price per ton 48.00 
  
  
CHESTER COUNTY DETENTION CENTER  
Inmate housing to municipalities (suspended 5/20/19) 52.00 
  
  
CHESTER COUNTY CORONER’S OFFICE  
Coroner’s Report 50.00 
Autopsy Report  100.00 
Photographs (Per Photo) 2.00 
CD/Photographs 25.00 
Toxicology Report  50.00 
Cremation Report  20.00 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   Ordinance No. 2021-9 
    ) 
COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL CHESTER COUNTY CODE §46-94 ENTITLED 
“TRANSPORTING LOOSE MATERIAL” 

 
 WHEREAS, Chester County Council has determined it is necessary to repeal a 

section of the Chester County Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chester County Council is empowered by the provisions of S.C. Code 

Ann. §§44-55-1010, et seq., and S.C. Code Ann. §4-9-35, as amended (the “Enabling 

Acts”), to enact ordinances relating to the management of the County in accordance 

with existing laws, policies and regulations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County enacted Ordinance §46-94 as a standalone ordinance 

meant to ensure tarping of vehicles carry loose material; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County subsequently enacted a revised Ordinance §46-93 which 

under subsection (2)(a) the issue of loose materials is addressed; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in the interest of eliminated duplication and possible confusion, it 

becomes necessary to repeal §46-94; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chester County Council has determined that §46-94 of the Chester 

County Code has become conflicting and superfluous and should be repealed since it is 

now addressed in a more comprehensive ordinance. 

   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR CHESTER 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, DULY ASSEMBLED THAT THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS 
HEREBY ADOPTED: 
 
 Chester County Council does hereby determine that Chester County Code §46-94 
has become conflicting and superfluous and is hereby repealed in its entirety.  
 



2 
 

                                                    Ordinance No. 2021-9 
 

This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption by the Chester County Council 
on the date of the final reading approval. 

 
Enacted and approved this ____day of _________, 2021. 
 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

By:_________________________________ 
Dr. Wylie Frederick 

Interim Supervisor, Chester County 
 

 
Attest: 
 
By:________________________ 
Karen Lee, Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
First Reading:  June 21st, 2021 
Second Reading: ________ ___, 2021  
Public Hearing: ________ ___, 2021  
Third Reading: ________ ___, 2021  
 
Chester County, South Carolina 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   Ordinance No. 2021-8 
    ) 
COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A FUND BALANCE POLICY FOR CHESTER COUNTY 

 
 WHEREAS, Chester County has the authority under S.C. Code §4-9-30 to adopt 

ordinances and to promulgate rules and regulations pertaining to its government and 

affairs, and to review interpret and amend its ordinances, rules and regulations, and 

oversee the County’s finances; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chester County Council is empowered by the provisions of S.C. Code 

S.C. Code Ann. §4-9-30(5), as amended to enact ordinances and policies relating to the 

fiscal management of the County in accordance with existing laws, and regulations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a Fund Balance policy is intended to provide guidelines during the 

preparation and execution of the annual budget to ensure that sufficient reserves are 

maintained for unanticipated expenditures or revenue shortfalls; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a Fund Balance policy also provides flexibility throughout the fiscal 

year to make adjustments in funding for programs approved in connection with the 

annual budget; and 

 

 WHEREAS, any Fund Balance policy should be established based upon a long-

term perspective recognizing that stated thresholds are considered minimum balances; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the main objective of establishing and maintaining a Fund Balance 

policy for the County is to be in a strong fiscal position that will allow for better 

positioning to weather negative economic trends. 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

       Ordinance No. 2021-8 

 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR CHESTER 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, DULY ASSEMBLED THAT THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS 
HEREBY ADOPTED: 
 
 Chester County Council does hereby adopt the Fund Balance Policy as attached 
herein as Exhibit A, and incorporated by reference into this Ordinance.  
 

This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption by the Chester County Council 
on the date of the final reading approval. 

 
Enacted and approved this ____day of _________, 2021. 
 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

By:_________________________________ 
Dr. Wylie Frederick 

Interim Supervisor, Chester County 
 

 
Attest: 
 
By:________________________ 
Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
First Reading:  ________ ___, 2021 
Second Reading: ________ ___, 2021  
Public Hearing: ________ ___, 2021  
Third Reading: ________ ___, 2021  
 
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

        Ordinance No. 2021-8 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 
 

Section 1. Purpose. The Fund Balance Policy is intended to provide guidelines 
during the preparation and execution of the annual budget to ensure that sufficient 
reserves are maintained for unanticipated expenditures or revenue shortfalls.  It also is 
intended to preserve flexibility throughout the fiscal year to make adjustments in 
funding for programs approved in connection with the annual budget.  The Fund 
Balance Policy should be established based upon a long-term perspective recognizing 
that stated thresholds are considered minimum balances.  The main objective of 
establishing and maintaining a Fund Balance Policy is for the County to be in a strong 
fiscal position that will allow for a better position to weather negative economic trends. 
 
Section 2. Categories. The Fund Balance consists of five categories:  
Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. 
 

• Nonspendable Fund Balance consists of funds that cannot be spent due to their 
form (e.g., inventories and prepaids) or funds that legally or contractually must 
be maintained intact. 

• Restricted Fund Balance consists of funds that are mandated for a specific 
purpose by external parties, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed Fund Balance consists of funds that are set aside for a specific 
purpose by the County’s highest level of decision making authority (governing 
body).  Formal action must be taken prior to the end of the fiscal year.  The same 
formal action must be taken to remove or change the limitations placed on the 
funds. 

• Assigned Fund Balance consists of funds that are set aside with the intent to be 
used for a specific purpose by the County’s highest level of decision making 
authority or a body or official that has been given the authority to assign funds.  
Assigned funds cannot cause a deficit in unassigned fund balance. 

• Unassigned Fund Balance consists of excess funds that have not been classified 
in the previous four categories.  All funds in this category are considered 
spendable resources.  This category also provides the resources necessary to 
meet unexpected expenditures and revenue shortfalls. 

 
Section 3. Responsibility.  Nonspendable funds are those funds that cannot be 
spent because they are either: 
 
 i. Not in spendable form (e.g., inventories and prepaids) 
 ii. Legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
 



4 
 

        Ordinance No. 2021-8 
 
It is the responsibility of the Treasurer and/or his designee to report all Nonspendable 
Funds appropriately in the County’s financial records. 
 
Restricted funds are those funds that have constraints placed on their use either: 
 
 i. Externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulation, or 
other governments 
 ii. By law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
It is the responsibility of the Treasurer and/or his designee to report all Restricted Funds 
appropriately in the County’s financial records. 
 
Section 4. Order of Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Funds.  When both 
restricted and unrestricted funds are available for expenditure, restricted funds should 
be spent first unless legal requirements disallow it or the expenditure would violate any 
restrictions on the funds. 
 
When committed, assigned and unassigned funds are available for expenditure, 
committed funds should be spent first, assigned funds second, and unassigned funds 
last in accordance with any restrictions on the funds. 
 
Section 5. Authority to Commit Funds.  The County Council has the authority to set 
aside funds for a specific purpose.  Any funds set aside as Committed Fund Balance 
requires, at a minimum, the passage of an ordinance will be necessary.  Commitment 
must take place on or before June 30th of the applicable fiscal year.  If the actual amount 
of the commitment is not available by June 30th, the ordinance must state the process 
or formula necessary to calculate the actual amount as soon as information is available.  
In the event County Council wishes to lift the committed status of funds so that they 
may be used for general purposes, a formal action equal to that which originally 
committed the funds, namely an ordinance, must be taken.   
 
Section 6. Stabilization Funds.  The County Council has the authority to establish a 
Financial Stabilization Account that will be a Committed Fund Balance.  A Financial 
Stabilization Account may be established for the purpose of providing funds for an 
urgent event that affects the safety of the general public (e.g., flood, pandemic, etc.).  
The minimum level for the Financial Stabilization Account is 5% of the General Fund 
expenditures.  The recognition of an urgent event must be established by County 
Council.  A budget amendment must be approved by County Council.  In the event that 
the balance drops below the established minimum level, County Council will develop a 
plan to replenish the Financial Stabilization Account balance to the established 
minimum level within two years. 
 



5 
 

Section 7. Authority to Assign Funds.  Upon passage of the Fund Balance Policy, 
authority is granted to the County Treasurer and/or his designee, to assign funds for 
specific purposes in an amount not to exceed $_____per purpose or in total not to 
exceed $______.  Any funds set aside as Assigned Fund Balance must be reported to 
County Council at their next regular meeting and recorded in the minutes.  County 
Council has the authority to remove or change the assignment of the funds. 
 
County Council has the authority to set aside funds for the intended use of a specific 
purpose.  Any funds set aside as Assigned Fund Balance requires a simple majority vote 
and must be recorded in the minutes.  The same action is required to change or remove 
the assignment. 
 
Upon passage of a budget ordinance where Fund Balance is used as a source to balance 
the budget, the Treasurer and/or his designee shall record the amount as Assigned Fund 
Balance. 
 
Section 8. Unassigned Fund Balance.  Unassigned Fund Balance is the residual 
amount of Fund Balance in the General Fund.  It represents the resources available for 
future spending.  An appropriate level of Unassigned Fund Balance should be 
maintained in the General Fund in order to cover unexpected expenditures and revenue 
shortfalls. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance may be accessed in the event of unexpected expenditures up 
to the minimum established level upon approval of a budget amendment by County 
Council.  In the event of projected revenue shortfalls, it is the responsibility of the 
Treasurer and/or his designee to report the projections to County Council on a quarterly 
basis and shall be recorded in the minutes. 
 
Any budget amendment that will result in the Unassigned Fund Balance dropping below 
the minimum level will require the approval of 2/3 vote of the County Council. 
 
The Fund Balance policy establishes a minimum Unassigned Fund Balance equal to ___% 
of General Fund expenditures.  In the event that the balance drops below the 
established minimum level County Council will develop a plan to replenish the fund 
balance to the established minimum level within twelve months.   



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )  
    )                              RESOLUTION NO: 2021-12 
COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY OF CHESTER, BY CHESTER COUNTY 
COUNCIL, TO SELL CERTAIN VEHICLES OF THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE IDENTIFIED HEREIN 

UPON SUCH TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS DESCRIBED  
 
 

 WHEREAS, S.C. Code §4-9-30(2) authorizes the Chester County Council to sell or 
otherwise dispose of real and personal property, and  
 

WHEREAS, S.C. Code §4-9-130(6) requires an ordinance and a public hearing only 
for the sale of real property, and   
 
 WHEREAS, Chester County and the Chester County Sheriff’s Office have vehicles 
owned by the County that, while are still viable vehicles, need to be replaced by newer, 
more efficient vehicles and equipment, and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chester County Council has determined that it is in the best interest 
of the County and the citizens of Chester County to sell or trade these vehicles and 
equipment in exchange for newer models. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR CHESTER 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, DULY ASSEMBLED THAT THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION IS 
HEREBY ADOPTED: 
 
 Chester County Council does hereby authorize the sale or trade of the following 
vehicles: 
 
Car # Description V.I.N. Mileage 

   

11 2011 Ford Crown Victoria 2FABP7BV9BX182796 279940 
   

15 2011 Ford Crown Victoria 2FABP7BV2BX185233 233570 
   

23 2011 Ford Crown Victoria 2FABP7BV7BX185244 214164 
   

25 2011 Ford Crown Victoria 2FABP7BV0BX185246 233874 
   



2 
 

12 2011 Ford Crown Victoria 2FABP7BV0BX182797 200090 
   

28 2011 Ford Crown Victoria 2FABP7BV6BX185249 263696 
   

21 2011 Ford Crown Victoria 2FABP7BV3BX185242 Broken 
   

102 2014 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT4EH185969 176515 
   

103 2014 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT5EH185981 182223 
   

98 2015 Dodge Challenger 2C3CDZATXFH758502 136101 
   

 
2004 Dodge Intrepid 2B3HD46R74H610713 Unknown Seized car converted to 

county property  
1997 Chevrolet Suburban 3GNFK16R4VG173286 264655 Seized car converted to 

county property 

 
 
Enacted and approved this ____day of _________, 2021. 
 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

By:_________________________________ 
Dr. Wyle Frederick 

Interim Supervisor, Chester County 
 

Attest: 
 
By:________________________ 
Clerk to County Council                                                          
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                  RESOLUTION NO: 2021-12 
 
 





















LWE
N.C. CORP. LIC. C-1815

LATHAM-WALTERS
ENGINEERING, INC.

16507-A NORTHCROSS DRIVE
 HUNTERSVILLE, N.C. 28078

 PHONE: (704) 895-8484
FAX:  (704) 237-4362

C
H

E
S

W
I
C

K

L
A

N
C

A
S

T
E

R
 
H

W
Y

 
&

 
W

Y
L
I
E

S
 
M

I
L
L
 
R

O
A

D

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.: 2020.35

SCALE: 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

JLW

MSL

DATE:  05/25/2021

3515 DOVEWOOD DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC  28226
 PHONE: (704)-361-7777

 judsonstringfellow@gmail.com

JDSI, LLC

R
I
C

H
B

U
R

G
,
 
S

C
 
 
2
9
7
2
9

05/25/2021  REVISED

PARCEL ID: 124-00-00-024-000

KIRKPATRICK AQUISITIONS, LLC

119 ACRES

D.B. 923 PG. 156

EX. ZONING: RS-1

1

PARCEL ID: 124-00-00-029-000

ST. KATHERINE PROPERTIES, LLC

42 ACRES

D.B. 926 PG. 109

EX. ZONING:  GC

SINGLE-FAMILY - MEDIUM DENSITY

SINGLE-FAMILY - LOW DENSITY

LEGEND:

TOWNHOMES - MAX. 200 HOMES

APARTMENTS - MAX. 240 UNITS

COMMERCIAL - AS CURRENTLY ZONED

(±55 ACRES)  MAX. 180 HOMES

(±123 ACRES)  MAX. 450 HOMES

(±26 ACRES)

(±22 ACRES)

(±40 ACRES) - NOT BEING REZONED

HWY 223 - WYLIES MILL ROAD

66' PUBLIC R/W

H
W

Y
 
9
 
-
 
L
A

N
C

A
S

T
E

R
 
H

W
Y

P
U

B
L
I
C

 
R

/
W

 
W

I
D

T
H

 
V

A
R

I
E

S

2

3

2

PARCEL ID: 124-00-00-027-000

JDSI, LLC

116 ACRES

D.B. 1329 PG. 300

EX. ZONING: R-2

n

o

r
t
h

4-LANE R
OAD-

2
-
L
A

N
E

 
R

O
A

D
-
8
0
'
 
R

/
W

2
-L

A
N

E
 R

O
A

D
-8

0
' R

/W

8
0
' R

/W

POSSIBLE DEDICATION FOR

FIRE/POLICE, ETC.

3

1

EX. PONDS / STREAMS

BMP

POND

BMP

POND

BMP

POND

BMP

POND

BMP

POND

BMP

POND

COMMON OPEN SPACE

(15%± OF RESIDENTIAL USE)

AMENITY

AREA

AMENITY

AREA

(APPROXIMATELY 12 ACRES IN PROPOSED R/W)

PROJECT AREA = ±235 ACRES

NOTE:  ROAD LOCATIONS MAY SHIFT SLIGHTLY

BASED UPON FINAL ENGINEERING DESIGN.

PARCEL  3  IS ZONED

GENERAL COMMERCIAL

 & NOT BEING REZONED

MAXIMUM 630 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES

MAXIMUM DENSITY WITH APARTMENTS &

TOWNHOMES IS 4.55 DWELLINGS PER ACRE

APARTMENTS/

TOWNHOMES

TOWNHOMES

COMMERCIAL

MIN. 50' WIDE, 6000 S.F. LOTS

MIN. 60' WIDE, 7200 S.F. LOTS

GROSS DENSITY: 1070 UNITS/TOTAL 235 AC.

 = 4.55 UNITS PER ACRE

APPROXIMATE NET DENSITY (LESS R/W & COS):

ROAD R/W: 12 AC.

COS: 35.25 AC.

NET ACREAGE: 187.75 AC.

APPROX. NET DENSITY: 1070 UNITS/187.75 AC.

= 5.70 UNITS/ACRE

25' WIDE BUFFER

25' WIDE BUFFER

MODIFIED PER PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
L

A
N

D
 
U

S
E

 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

N.T.S.

C1.0

REVISED PER PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION



LWE
N.C. CORP. LIC. C-1815

LATHAM-WALTERS
ENGINEERING, INC.

16507-A NORTHCROSS DRIVE
 HUNTERSVILLE, N.C. 28078

 PHONE: (704) 895-8484
FAX:  (704) 237-4362

C
H

E
S

W
I
C

K

L
A

N
C

A
S

T
E

R
 
H

W
Y

 
&

 
W

Y
L
I
E

S
 
M

I
L
L
 
R

O
A

D

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.: 2020.35

SCALE: 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

JLW

MSL

DATE:  05/25/2021

3515 DOVEWOOD DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC  28226
 PHONE: (704)-361-7777

 judsonstringfellow@gmail.com

JDSI, LLC

R
I
C

H
B

U
R

G
,
 
S

C
 
 
2

9
7

2
9

05/25/2021  REVISED

PARCEL ID: 124-00-00-024-000

KIRKPATRICK AQUISITIONS, LLC

119 ACRES

D.B. 923 PG. 156

EX. ZONING: RS-1

1

PROPERTY OWNERS:

PARCEL ID: 124-00-00-029-000

ST. KATHERINE PROPERTIES, LLC

42 ACRES

D.B. 926 PG. 109

EX. ZONING:  GC

SINGLE-FAMILY - MEDIUM DENSITY

SINGLE-FAMILY - LOW DENSITY

LEGEND:

TOWNHOMES - MAX. 200 HOMES

APARTMENTS - MAX. 240 UNITS

COMMERCIAL - AS CURRENTLY ZONED

(±55 ACRES) MAX. 180 HOMES

(±123 ACRES) MAX. 450 HOMES

(±26 ACRES)

(±22 ACRES)

(±40 ACRES)

HWY 223 - WYLIES MILL ROAD

66' PUBLIC R/W

H
W

Y
 
9
 
-
 
L
A

N
C

A
S

T
E

R
 
H

W
Y

P
U

B
L
I
C

 
R

/
W

 
W

I
D

T
H

 
V

A
R

I
E

S

2

3

2

PARCEL ID: 124-00-00-027-000

JDSI, LLC

116 ACRES

D.B. 1329 PG. 300

EX. ZONING: R-2

n

o

r
t
h

(APPROXIMATELY 12 ACRES IN PROPOSED R/W)

4-LANE R
OAD-

2
-
L
A

N
E

 
R

O
A

D
-
8
0
'
 
R

/
W

PROJECT AREA = ±235 ACRES

NOTE:  ROAD LOCATIONS MAY SHIFT SLIGHTLY

BASED UPON FINAL ENGINEERING DESIGN.

2
-L

A
N

E
 R

O
A

D
-8

0
' R

/W

8
0
' R

/W

PARCEL  3  IS ZONED

GENERAL COMMERCIAL

 & NOT BEING REZONED

POSSIBLE DEDICATION FOR

FIRE/POLICE, ETC.

3

1

EX. PONDS / STREAMS

GENERAL CRITERIA:

1. NO RESIDENCE LOTS FRONT ON MAIN THOROUGHFARE SPINE ROADS - SPINE ROAD DESIGNED FOR

FUTURE EXTENSION & CONNECTION TO PRIOR CLUSTER PLAN PROJECT ON NORTH END (STUB

THOROUGHFARE STREET FOR POTENTIAL FUTURE DEVELOPMENT). ENTRANCE SPINE ROAD TO BE

FOUR LANE AS SHOWN ON PLAN (SUBJECT TO SCDOT APPROVAL), SECONDARY SPINE ROAD SECTIONS

TO BE TWO LANE BUT WITH 80 FT RIGHTS-OF-WAY FOR POTENTIAL FUTURE WIDENING TO FOUR LANES.

SPINE ROADS TO BE INSTALLED AS ADJACENT SECTIONS OF PROPERTY ARE DEVELOPED OVER TIME.

MOST ROADS WILL BE SCDOT MAINTAINED, SOME MULTI-FAMILY AREA ROADS WILL BE HOA MAINTAINED.

2. A FIXED IMPACT FEE OF $1,500 PER HOME/DWELLING WILL BE PAID TO CHESTER CO AT TIME OF

BUILDING PERMIT.

3. COUNTY WATER AND SEWER SERVICE TO BE EXTENDED TO ALL RESIDENTIAL OCCUPANCY AND

COMMERCIAL USE BUILDING LOTS.

4. RESIDENTIAL SECTIONS TO HAVE NO MORE THAN 200 HOMES PER ENTRANCE OFF SPINE ROADS.

5. APPROX 1.75 +/- ACRE DEDICATION TO COUNTY OR RICHBURG FIRE / POLICE DEPARTMENT ALONG

WYLIES MILL RD OR A MAIN SPINE ROAD SECTION AT LOCATION AS MUTUALLY AGREED.

6. MINIMUM 14% PARKS / GREEN / OPEN SPACE AREAS OF RESIDENTIAL AREA, ALL RESIDENTIAL

SECTIONS OPEN SPACES TO BE HOA MANAGED.

7. USE / DENSITY PER SECTION SHOWN ON MASTER PLAN MAP. SINGLE FAMILY TO BE DEVELOPED FIRST

AND BE AT LEAST 50% DEVELOPED BEFORE MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENT STARTS.  MAXIMUM NUMBER

OF 630 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES, 200 TOWNHOMES AND 240 APARTMENTS, OVERALL DENSITY OF 4.55

DWELLINGS PER ACRE. DEVELOPMENT TO START APPROXIMATELY 12-18 MONTHS, TOTAL TIME

EXPECTED TO BE ABOUT 10 YEARS.

8. EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN WHERE REASONABLY POSSIBLE AND WHICH DO NOT INHIBIT BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION AND MEETING COUNTY & STATE DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING, BUT NOT

LIMITED TO, STORM DRAINAGE, EROSION CONTROL, ROAD & R/W, ETC REQUIREMENTS.

SPECIFIC AREA CRITERIA:

SINGLE FAMILY:

· MAXIMUM DENSITIES AS SHOWN ON MASTER PLAN MAP

· NO MORE THAN 200 HOMES PER ACCESS ENTRANCE ROAD CONNECTION TO MAIN SPINE ROADS.

· ALL SINGLE FAMILY HOMES TO HAVE MINIMUM 16' WIDE DRIVEWAY FOR OFF STREET PARKING OF 2

VEHICLES AND TWO CAR   GARAGES.

· DEVELOPED PER RG-2 ZONING STANDARDS EXCEPT AS STATED HEREIN

· MEDIUM DENSITY AREA: MINIMUM LOT SIZE SHALL BE 50 FT WIDE, 6,000 SQ FT, MINIMUM FRONT

SETBACK SHALL BE 25 FT,  MINIMUM SIDE SETBACK SHALL BE 6 FT (12 FT ON CORNER LOT), MINIMUM

REAR YARD SETBACK SHALL BE 20 FT

· LOW DENSITY AREA: MINIMUM LOT SIZE SHALL BE 60 FT WIDE, 7,200 SQ FT, MINIMUM FRONT

SETBACK SHALL BE 25 FT,  MINIMUM SIDE SETBACK SHALL BE 8 FT (15 FT ON CORNER LOT), MINIMUM

REAR YARD SETBACK SHALL BE 20 FT

· RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION ROAD RIGHTS-OF-WAY SHALL BE 50 FT WIDE AND PAVING WIDTHS SHALL

BE AS PER SCDOT 2017  ROADWAY DESIGN MANUAL - LOCAL ROADS AND STREETS SECTION 14.2.4.3

TOWNHOMES:

· 25 +/- ACRES, MAXIMUM 200 HOMES (8 HOMES PER ACRE MAXIMUM)

· DEVELOPED PER RG-2 ZONING STANDARDS EXCEPT AS STATED HEREIN

· MAY BE MIX OF PUBLIC & PRIVATE DEDICATED STREETS (IF PRIVATE WILL BE MAINTAINED BY HOA),

ROAD RIGHTS-OF-WAY SHALL BE 50 FT WIDE AND PAVING WIDTHS SHALL BE AS PER SCDOT 2017

ROADWAY DESIGN MANUAL - LOCAL ROADS AND STREETS SECTION 14.2.4.3.

· MINIMUM SIDE SETBACK SHALL BE 10 FEET, (15 FT ON CORNER LOTS), MINIMUM 20 FT BETWEEN

SIDES OF ADJACENT BUILDINGS. MINIMUM REAR SETBACK SHALL BE 20 FEET (MINIMUM 40 FT

BETWEEN REARS OF ADJACENT BUILDINGS).

· TOWNHOMES TO BE SOLD INDIVIDUALLY WITH A MINIMUM OF 800 SQ FT OF LAND NOT LOCATED

UNDER THE TOWNHOME UNIT (IE, FRONT / REAR / SIDE YARDS)

· MINIMUM TOWNHOME WIDTH = 20 FT, ALL WITH ONE CAR GARAGE

APARTMENTS/TOWNHOMES:

· 20 +/- ACRES, MAXIMUM 240 UNITS (12 UNITS PER ACRE MAXIMUM / 8 UNITS PER ACRE IF DEVELOPED

AS TOWNHOMES)

· DEVELOPED PER RG-2 ZONING STANDARDS EXCEPT AS STATED HEREIN IF DEVELOPED AS

APARTMENTS

· IF DEVELOPED AS TOWNHOMES, THE ABOVE TOWNHOME STANDARDS WILL APPLY

MAXIMUM 630 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES

MAXIMUM DENSITY WITH APARTMENTS &

TOWNHOMES IS 4.55 DWELLINGS PER ACRE

C1.1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
L

A
N

D
 
U

S
E

 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

1"=250'



LWE
N.C. CORP. LIC. C-1815

LATHAM-WALTERS
ENGINEERING, INC.

16507-A NORTHCROSS DRIVE
 HUNTERSVILLE, N.C. 28078

 PHONE: (704) 895-8484
FAX:  (704) 237-4362

C
H

E
S

W
I
C

K

L
A

N
C

A
S

T
E

R
 
H

W
Y

 
&

 
W

Y
L
I
E

S
 
M

I
L
L
 
R

O
A

D

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.: 2020.35

SCALE: 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

JLW

MSL

DATE:  05/25/2021

3515 DOVEWOOD DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC  28226
 PHONE: (704)-361-7777

 judsonstringfellow@gmail.com

JDSI, LLC

R
I
C

H
B

U
R

G
,
 
S

C
 
 
2
9
7
2
9

05/25/2021  REVISED

PARCEL ID: 124-00-00-024-000

KIRKPATRICK AQUISITIONS, LLC

119 ACRES

D.B. 923 PG. 156

EX. ZONING: RS-1

1

PROPERTY OWNERS:

PARCEL ID: 124-00-00-029-000

ST. KATHERINE PROPERTIES, LLC

42 ACRES

D.B. 926 PG. 109

EX. ZONING:  GC

H

W

Y

 
2

2

3

 
-
 
W

Y

L

I
E

S

 
M

I
L

L

 
R

O

A

D

6

6

'
 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

/
W

H

W

Y

 

9

 

-

 

L

A

N

C

A

S

T

E

R

 

H

W

Y

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

/

W

 

W

I

D

T

H

 

V

A

R

I

E

S

EX. PONDS / STREAMS

3

2

1

3

2

PARCEL ID: 124-00-00-027-000

JDSI, LLC

116 ACRES

D.B. 1329 PG. 300

EX. ZONING: R-2

n
o

r
t
h

4

-

L

A

N

E

 

R

O

A

D

-

2

-

L

A

N

E

 

R

O

A

D

-

8

0

 

R

/

W

2

-
L

A

N

E

 
R

O

A

D

-
8

0

 
R

/
W

8

0

 
R

/
W

POSSIBLE DEDICATION FOR

FIRE/POLICE, ETC.

EX. WETLANDS

PROPOSED FUTURE

THOROUGHFARE

ROAD NETWORK

PROPOSED FUTURE

THOROUGHFARE

ROAD NETWORK

SINGLE-FAMILY - MEDIUM DENSITY

SINGLE-FAMILY - LOW DENSITY

LEGEND:

TOWNHOMES-MAX. 200 HOMES

APARTMENTS - MAX. 240 UNITS

COMMERCIAL - AS CURRENTLY ZONED

(±55 ACRES)

(±123 ACRES)

(±26 ACRES)

(±22 ACRES)

(±40 ACRES)

E

X

.

E

D

G

E

L

A

N

D

 

R

O

A

D

6

6

'
 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

/

W

E

X

.

V

I

C

T

O

R

I

A

N

 

H

I

L

L

S

 

D

R

I

V

E

6

6

'
 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

/

W

C1.2

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 
F

U
T

U
R

E
 
M

A
I
N

R
O

A
D

 
N

E
T

W
O

R
K

1"=400'



LWE
N.C. CORP. LIC. C-1815

LATHAM-WALTERS
ENGINEERING, INC.

16507-A NORTHCROSS DRIVE
 HUNTERSVILLE, N.C. 28078

 PHONE: (704) 895-8484
FAX:  (704) 237-4362

C
H

E
S

W
I
C

K

L
A

N
C

A
S

T
E

R
 
H

W
Y

 
&

 
W

Y
L
I
E

S
 
M

I
L
L
 
R

O
A

D

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.: 2020.35

SCALE: 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

JLW

MSL

DATE:  04/07/2021

3515 DOVEWOOD DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC  28226
 PHONE: (704)-361-7777

 judsonstringfellow@gmail.com

JDSI, LLC

R
I
C

H
B

U
R

G
,
 
S

C
 
 
2
9
7
2
9

C1.3

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

A
T

I
V

E

H
O

M
E

 
E

X
T

E
R

I
O

R
 
P

I
C

T
U

R
E

S

AS SHOWN



Proposed “Cheswick” 235 acres PD Rezoning Included Terms 
(Amended per Planning Commission Recommendation) 

 
General Criteria: 
 
1) No residence lots front on main spine roads – spine road designed for possible future extension &  connection to prior 

cluster plan project on north end (stub spine road for potential future development). Entrance spine road to be four 
lane as shown on plan (per SCDOT approval), secondary spine road sections to be two lane but with 80 ft rights-of-
way for potential future four lane widening.  Spine roads to be installed as adjacent sections of property are developed 
over time. Most roads will be SCDOT maintained, some multi-family area roads will be HOA maintained. 
 

2) A fixed “impact fee” of $1,500 per home/dwelling will be paid to Chester Co for schools / public service at time of 
building permits (in addition to water & sewer system impact fees).  

 
3) County water and sewer service to be extended to all residential occupancy and commercial use building lots.  

 
4) Residential sections to have no more than 200 homes per entrance off spine roads.   
 
5) Approx 1.75 +/- acre dedication to county or Richburg along Wylies Mill Rd or a main spine road section at location as 

mutually agreed for police / EMT / fire or other public use  
 
6) Minimum 14% parks / green / open space areas of residential area, all residential sections open spaces to be HOA 

managed. 
 
7) Use / density per section shown on master site plan map. Single family to be developed first and be at least 50% 

developed before multi-family development starts.  Maximum number of 630 single family homes, 200 townhouses 
and 240 apartments, overall density of 4.55 dwellings per acre. The maximum net area density after subtracting public 
road R/W’s and Open Space Areas is approximately 5.7 dwellings per acre. Development to start approximately 12-
18 months after rezoning, total time expected to be about 10 years.  

 
8) Existing trees to remain where reasonably possible and which do not inhibit building construction and meeting county 

& state development requirements including, but not limited to, storm drainage, erosion control, road & R/W, etc 
requirements.  

 
Specific Area Criteria: 
 
Single family: 

a) Maximum densities as shown on master plan map 
b) No more than 200 homes per access entrance road connection to main spine roads.  
c) All single family homes to have minimum 16’ wide driveway for off street parking of 2 vehicles and two car 

garages. 
d) Developed per RG-2 zoning standards except as stated herein 
e) Medium Density Area: minimum lot size shall be 50 ft wide, minimum 6,000 sq ft, minimum front setback shall be 

25 ft, minimum side setback shall be 6 ft (12 ft on corner lot), minimum rear yard setback shall be 20 ft 
f) Low Density Area: minimum lot size shall be 60 ft wide, minimum 7,200 sq ft, minimum front setback shall be 25 

ft, minimum side setback shall be 7 ft (13 ft on corner lot), minimum rear yard setback shall be 20 ft 
g) Residential subdivision road rights-of-way shall be 50 ft wide and paving widths shall be as per SCDOT 2017 

Roadway Design Manual – Local Roads and Streets section 14.2.4.3 
 

Townhouses: 
a) 25 +/- acres, maximum 200 homes (8 homes per acre maximum) 
b) Developed per RG-2 zoning standards except as stated herein 
c) May be mix of public & private dedicated streets (if private will be maintained by HOA), road rights-of-way shall be 

50 ft wide and paving widths shall be as per SCDOT 2017 Roadway Design Manual – Local Roads and Streets 
section 14.2.4.3. 

d) Minimum side setback shall be 10 feet, (15 ft on corner lots), minimum 20 ft between sides of adjacent buildings. 
Minimum rear setback shall be 20 feet (minimum 40 ft between rears of adjacent buildings). 

e) Townhouses to be sold individually with a minimum of 800 sq ft of land not located under the townhome unit (ie, 
front / rear / side yards)  

f) Minimum townhome width = 20 ft, all with one car garage 
 
Apartments/Townhouses: 

a) 20 +/- acres, maximum 240 units (12 units per acre maximum / 8 units per acre if developed as townhouses) 
b) Developed per RG-2 zoning standards except as stated herein if developed as apartments 
c) If developed as townhouses, the above townhouse standards will apply 




























	1. 6-21-2021
	2. 5-27-2021  Budget Workshop Meeting
	3. 6-3-2021  Budget Workshop and  Special Called Meeting
	4. 6-7-2021 Council minutes
	5. 6-14-2021   Special Called Meeting Minutes
	6.  FY2022 Ord. 2021-4  Budget Ordinance 3rd Reading
	7. 2021-9 Ordinance to Repeal Section 46-94
	8. 2021-8 Ordinance to Adopt Fund Balance Policy
	9. 2021-12Authorization to sell vehiclesJune2021
	10. CCMA21-14 Judy Funderburk_2021-05-25-141528466
	11. CCMA21-15 JDSI LLC_2021-05-25-141703528
	CHESWICK-5-25-21.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED LAND USE SITE PLAN
	PLACEHOLDER


	Sheets and Views
	CONCEPTUAL FUTURE MAIN ROAD NETWORK
	PLACEHOLDER


	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED LAND USE SITE PLAN
	PLACEHOLDER




	12. CCMA21-16 JDSI LLC_2021-05-25-142035295
	CHESWICK-5-25-21.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED LAND USE SITE PLAN
	PLACEHOLDER


	Sheets and Views
	CONCEPTUAL FUTURE MAIN ROAD NETWORK
	PLACEHOLDER


	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED LAND USE SITE PLAN
	PLACEHOLDER




	13. CCMA21-17 David Woods Rezone from RG1 to RG2
	14. CCMA21-18 Eugene Raffaldt Rezone from RG1 to RG2
	15. CCMA21-19 Carolina Gypsum LLC Rezone from GC to ID2
	16. General-Grant-Overview-Round-2



